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DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALG

1 APPEARANCES: : 5
1 EXAMINATION BY MR, FOLLANSBEE:
2 Stephen R. Follansbee, Esqr 2 Q Good morning, sir, Covld you please state your
3 Follansbee & McLeod, LLP 3 name and ogcupation? i
4 gf:ln(i::s,“;f;;:g;'uz;‘:tzlgg’ls“ 4 A Richard Macbhonald, M-a-c cl'!:ltnID-O-N-A-L-D,
Attorney for the Plalntife ! 5 town manager forthe Town of Duxbury.
5 6 Q And how long have you been the town manager for
€ Robert S, Troy, Esq. T the Town of Duxbury, sir? ’
7 S wall Associates 8 A  June 200S.
Sandwlich, Massachusetts 02563-1866 9 Q And with regard to your educational training,
B Attorney foer the Defendants,
Town of Duxbury, Et Als. 10 beginalng with high school, could you take us
9 . 1 through your educational background?
10 ALSO PRESENT: 12 A Il have a high school education. T have a
13 bachalor of scleance degree in business
11 Douglas Johnson
Jason Laramee 14 adminlstration.
12 (For Johnson Golf Management, Inc.) 1 @  And where did you go to high schoot?
13 16 A Saugus High School.
14 17 Q And when did you graduate, sir?
_ _ 18__A 1965 _— —
12 19 Q  And you obtained a bachelor's degree from what
17 20 Institution?
}g 21 A Emmanuel College.
20 2 Q When was that?
24
22 23 A Roughly ‘91,
‘2?3 24 Q. And were you a full-time student at Emmanuet
DEPCSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R, MacDONALD
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1 College?
2 Depesition of: Bage 2 A Part-tim e,
3 RICHARD R. MacDONALD 3 Q. And when did you attend Emmanuvel College?
4 Examlination by Mr. Follansbee 5 4 A Late '80s, Into the 503,
5 Q And what year did you recelve your degree?
5 6 A I beliave It was aarly '90s, '91, '92.
6 7 Q And It's a bachelor of sctence degree?
7 Exhibits Page 8 A Yes,
8 qQ And the field again, was that business
8 No. 14 Packet of North Hill Country 18
Club Non-Price Evaluation 10 administration?
¢ Forms for October of 2008 RFP i1 A  Business administration.
10 No. 1§ Criterts Evaluation Standards 39 12 @  Priorto obtaining your position as town
1 No. 16 Questions regarding Pre-Bid a2 13 Mmanager In June of 2005, what did you do
Conference October 2, 2008 at 14 immedlately prior to that by way of vocation?
12 10:00 a.m. 5 A Director of Inspectional Sarvices for the Town
13 16 of Duxbury,
14 17 Q. And what years were you Director of Inspectional
- 18 Services?
:g 19 A 1996 to 2005,
17 20 Q  And opriorto 1996, what was your occupation?
]g 21 A Well, 1 was the Director Of Inspectional
%‘13 22 Services/assgistant town manager for the Town of
52 23 Saugus,
gg 24 Q And what year did you have the positlon of
DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD
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1 PROCEEDINGS 1 asslstant town manager and Director of
2 2 Inspectienal Services In Savgus? For what time
3 MR, FOLLANSBEE: As far as stipulations. 3 periog?
4 MR. TROY: Iwould just, you know, agree 4 A 1991 to 1996,
5 to the rules. § Q@ Andopriorto 1991, what was your occupation?
6 MR. FOLLANSBEE: So do you want him to 6 A President of R. R. MacDonald Mechanlical
7 sign before a notary public? 7 Contrl:ting._
8 J_-IR.T”ROY: Rlght, we'll just abide by 8 aQ And was_thafaMassachusetts corFporation?
8 the rules of clvil procedure -- 2 A Yes, It was,
10 MR, FOLLANSBEE: Okay, 10 Q. And how long did you have that occupation?
11 MR, TROY: -- foreverythlng. 1 A 20 some odd years,
12 MR. FOLLANSBEE: As far as objections, 12 @ So frem, roughily, 1871 to 15917
13 are you walving any ebjections? 13 A ‘70s, yeah, more like 1978.
14 MR, TROY: No. 14 Q. ‘78 to '917
15 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Okay. 15 A Right,
16 Swearin the witness, please. 16 @ And 1965 to 1978, what did¢ you do for an
17 17 occupatlion?
18 RICHARD R. MacDONALD, 2 wlitness called on 8 A, Iwasin the United States Marina Corps and then
19 behall of the Plalatiff, first having been 19 Iwasin Local 12.
20 satisfactorly ldenkifled by thelr Massachusetts 200 Q. And whatis Local 127
21 driver's llcense, then duly sworn, on oath 21 A It's a plumbers unlon.
22 deposes and says as follows: 22 Q. So fora period of time, you worked as a union
23 ' 23 plumbar? o
24 24 A Well, briefly. And then I went into the
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DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R, MacDONALD

B8 11
1 management field with a company called P. C. 1t don't you show him the document,
2 Huggins. 2 MR, FOLLANSBEE: I'll show him the
3 Q. H-U-G-G-I-N-5? - 3 document, g
4 A. Correct. . 4 Q. (BY MR, FOLLANSBEE) Sir, I'm going to show you
5 Q. And where was P. C, Huggins located? 5 what has been previously marked as a Request For
6 A. Saugus, Mass. : 6 Proposals for the North Hill Country Club by the
7 Q. Now, directing your attention -- 7 Town of Duxbury. It was marked as Exhibit 2 in
8 Well, would that complete ali of your B the deposition of Mr. Lanzetta. I'll let your
9 various employment positions since graduation 9 counsef look at that first and then I'll ask you
10 frem high school? 10 a few questions about it. If you would keep
11 A. Ibeg your pardon? 11 that in front of you, sir.
12 Q. Have we covered all of your various employment 12 Before I get to Exhibit No. 3, I should
13 situations since you graduated from high 13 have asked you one more thing. After graduating
14 school? 14 from Emmanuel and receiving your bachelor of
15 A. Briefly, I was with the City of Beverly from '88 | 15 science degree, have you had any other formal
16 to '91. 16 - egducational training?
17 Q. What did you do for Beverly? 17 A.  Itook some master's in public administration
i nt: 18 courses-at-Suffolic University.
ﬂﬁ*Q:“—Aﬂd‘whatwas’Vomj'cb—assingentT 19 Q. Andwhen did you take those?
20 A. Health agent. 20 A. I would say, late '90s.
21 Q. Now, prior to 2005, when you obtained your 21 Q. And with the exception of the courses that you
22 position as the town manager, did you have any 22 took at Suffolk University, have you had any
23 experience with public procurement procedures in 23 subsequent formal training?
24 Massachusetts? ’ 24 A. No.
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1 A. Prior to 20057 1 Q. Now, with regard to what's been marked as
2 Q. Yes. ' 2 Exhibit 3 and placed before you, did you have a
3 A. Yes. 3 role in drafting that document?
4 Q. And what invoivement did you have with public 4 A No.
5 procurement prior to 20057 5 Q. Do you know who drafted the document?
6 A. The Town of Saugus. 6 A. Idon'trecall.
7 Q. Did you have any role as either a chief 7 Q. Do you recall the issuance of the RFP in October
8 procurement officer or in the office of 8 of 20087
<] procurement in the Town of Saugus? 9 A. Repeat the question.
10 A. Neo. 10 Q. Do you recall the Town of Duxbury issuing that
11 Q. Did you have any formal training in the public 11 proposal or Request For Proposals in October of
12 procurement field when you were working in 12 2008?
13 Saugus? 13 MR. TROY: Are you asking, does he recall
14 A. No. 14 that document being issued? Is that what the
15 Q. Since you began working in the Town of Duxbury, 15 question is? )
16 have you had any training in the field of public 16 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Yes, whether the request
17 procurement? 17 for proposals was issued.
18 A. No, 18 A. Whether it was issued?
19 Q. And am I correct that, as the town manager in 19 Q. Yes.
20 Duxbury, you are also the chief procurement 20 A. Iassume it was.
21 officer for the town? 21 Q. Well, do you recall it being published and given
22 A. Yes. : 22 out to prospective proposers?
23 Q. Now, as the chief procurement officer for Town 23 A. No.
24 of Duxbury, did you have occasion to become 24 Q. Do you have any memory of the process in October
DEPCSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD
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1 familiar with the Massachusetts Uniform 1 of 20087
2 Procurement Act, which is General Laws, Chapter 2 A. Very little, very Fittie.
3 30B? 3 Q. Did you, as the chief procurement officer,
4 A, I'vereadit. 4 formulate a decision to use a Request For
5 Q. And other than having read it, have you had any 5 Proposals for the North Hill Country Club in
6 training at all with regard to that? 6 2008 pursuant to Chapter 30B, Section 67
7 A. No. 7 A. I'm sure there was a conversation, but I don't
8 Q. And when did you read it? 8 recall the conversation, nor with whom,
9 A. Idon'trecall. 9 Q. But as far as your decision as the chief
10 Q. With regard to the procurement process seeking 10 procurement officer to employ comparative
11 an operator for the North Hill Country Club in 1 criteria to evaluate different proposers, did
12 calendar year 2008, did you have occasion to 12 you come to that conclusion yourself?
13 read Chapter 30B, at that time? 13 A. It was, I believe, part of the process.
14 A, No. 14 Q. And was that your decision to use a comparative
15 Q. And did you ever designate anybody else in the 15 analysis?
16 Town of Duxbury to do the procurement 16 A, It was probably the legal process,
17 documents for the Town of Duxbury relative to 17 Q. Weli, what do you mean by "the legal process"?
18 the North Hill Country Club in calendar year 18 A. Waell, we followed the procedures under 30B.
15 20087 19 Q. And when you say "we followed the procedures,"
20 A. Idon'trecait, 20 whe are you including in the "we"?
21 Q. Are you familiar with -- 21 A. The town.
22 Well, you're familiar with the REP that 22 Q. And with regard to your role in issuing a
23 was Issued by the Town of Duxbury? 23 Request Far Proposals, which has been marked as
24 MR. TROY: Objection as to form., Why 24 Exhibit 3, do you recall reading that docurment
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1 before it was made available to prospective 1 was the point person on behaif of the Town of
2 corporations and individuals to bid on the golf 2 Duxbury in interacting with the prospective
3 course? 3 bidders?
4 A. Idon'trecall. : 4 MR. TROY: Objection.
5 Q. Did you have any -- did you, personally -- have 5 You can answer. .
6 any contact with any other governmental 6 A, 1would say that's a fair statement.
7 entities, such as the Inspector General's 7 Q. And do you recall that there was a prebid
8 Office, before October of 2008 when Exhibit 3 8 conference that took place for any potential
9 was made available to prospective bidders? 9 bidders to come and look at the property?
10 MR. TROY: Objection. I just want to 10 A. Ido not recall.
1" note, for the record, that consultations with 11 Q. Did you discuss the RFP process in the fall of
12 counsel are not discoverable. 12 '08 with Mr. Cushing?
13 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I'm not asking for 13 A. 1Idon'trecall,
14 consuftations with counsel, 14 Q. I'm going to show you documents that have been
15 MR. TROY: So I think the question is, 15 provided by the Town of Duxbury. And I'll ask
16 other than consultation with counsel. 16 you a few questions and see if we can identify
17 MR, FOLLANSBEE: Yes. 17 these,
— |18 Q. {BY MR. FOL{ANSBEE) Just for clarity, I'm not 18 MR, TROY: Weli, I think_ if theseare . ____ __ _
19 asking you for any conversations that you had 19 related to the first --
20 with your own attorneys. I'm asking whether you 20 MR. FOLLANSBEE: These are the first
21 had any consultation with other governmental 21 RFP.
22 entities, such as the Inspector General's 22 MR. TROY: -- which is not the subject
23 Office? 23 matter of this case, I'm going to object. I
24 A. Notthat I recall. 24 don't think we're going to go through two
DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R, MacDONALD
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1 Q. Did you appoint certain individuals to do the 1 procurement processes, not in this case.
2 evaluations of the proposals that were received 2 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) With regard to the
3 from various candidates pursuant to the issuance 3 document in front of you, do you recognize
4 of the RFP, which is Exhibit 3? 4 these as the nonprice evaluation forms that
5 A. IbelieveI did, 5 were provided as part of the RFP process in
6 Q. And do you know who the evaluators were? 5] Octoher of 2008?
7 A. The first time around, I cannot recall who they 7 A. No.
8 were. 8 Q. Have you looked at the document?
9 Q. Did you discuss the RFP process with the 9 A. Ijustdid.
10 evaluators? 10 Q. And what do you believe these are?
11 A, Idon'trecall. 11 MR. TROY: Objection. He can't answer
12 Q. Did you give any guidance to the evaluaters on 12 that question,
13 how you wanted the evaluations done? 13 Q. You can't answer that question?
14 A, 1Ido not recall that. 14 MR. TROY: What does he believe those
15 Q. Did you prepare any forms for the evaluators to 16 are?
16 use in evaluating the proposals in October of 16 MR, FOLLANSBEE: He says he can't
17 20087 17 identify them.
18- A. Not that I remember. 18 - MR. TROY: He just said he can't identify
19 MR. TROY: And just for the record, too, 19 them, so he can't answer that question.
20 whan you're saying "did you," you're asking 20 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I'd ask that this be
21 Mr. MacDonald whether he himself prepared forms? 21 marked as the next exhibit.
22 Is that what the question is? 22 (Exhibit No. 14, For Identification,
23 .MR. FOLLANSBEE: Yes. 23 marked.)
24 MR. TROY: Is that where the "you" is 24 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) Sir, directing your
DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD
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1 directed, to him? 1 attention to what's now been marked as Exhibit
2 MR, FOLLANSBEE: To him, personally. 2 No. 14, did you review the nonprice evaluations
3 MR. TRQY: To the town manager. 3 of Mr. Cushing, Mr. Dixon and Mr. Floreano in
4 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Right, to him 4 the fall of 20087
5 personally. 5 A. 1Ido not recall.
6 MR. TROY: All right. 6 Q. Do you recall making a determination yourself
7 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) And you don't recall 7 to rejact all of the proposals that were
8 that? ’ 8 provided in response to the RFP in the December
9 A. Idon't. 9 time frame of 20087 :
10 Q. Are there any documents that would help you in 10 A. Irecall that the first round of bids was
11 remembering who you appeinted as the " rejected.
12 evaluators? . 12 Q. And it was your decision to reject those
13 A. I assume there is a file, but I don't have it 13 proposals, correct?
14 with me. 14 A. Idon'trecall, exactly. But I'm sure it
15 Q. And when was the last time that you looked at 15 probably was upon a recommendation of the
16 that file? 16 committee.
17 A. Along time ago. Specifically, I don't recall 17 Q. And when you say "upon a recommendation of the
18 when that was. 18 committee," could you tell me who the committee
19 Q. Just for the record, could-you tell us who 19 is?
20 Mr. Gordon Cushing is? 20 A. Idon'trecall. I'm assuming that it was from
21 A, Heis the recreation director for the Town of 21 the committee. That's an assumption on my part
22 Duxbury, 22 only.
23 Q. Andis it fair to say that, during the RFP 23 Q. When you use the word "committee,” what are you
24 process in the autumn of 2008, Gerdon Cushing 24 referring to?
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has to be, other than consultation with counsel

DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD

1 A. The review committee. "1
2 Q. When you say "the review committee," are you 2 for the question to be complete. You either
3 talking about the evaiuators? 3 have to ask him whether he consulted with
4 A. Correct. 4 counsel and put,that on the record. But you
5 Q. Justso [ understand It, yeur decision to reject 5 can't -- what you're essentially doing is,
8 the bids, you believe, was based upon the 6 you're asking a question which |s |nherentiy
7 committee's recommendation to you that they 7 unfair,
8 should be rejected? 8 MR, FOLLANSBEE: I certainly don't mean
9 A. Idon'trecallthe exact specifics. 9 te be unfair. I don't want conversations with
10 Q. Inthe fall of 2008, did you have occasion to 10 counsel.
11 review the RFP and the proposals that were 11 MR. TROY: I know.
12 submitted by the five dlfferent companies 12 But for some reason, whether it's
13 pursuant thereto? 13 intentional or unintentional, you are not
14 A. Idon'trecall 14 putting on the record the fact of whether or not
15 Q. You don't recall if you looked at the 15 he had conversations with counsel about the
16 proposals? 16 legal judgment that was made in making a
17 A. No. 17 determination to reject the bids.
u-dontreca-fyou-reviewed-the 18 Atid-you're-not-entitled-to-what-those
19~ nonprice evaluation forms by the various T 19 caniversations are. Butthe record should
20 evajuators? 20 reflect whether or not he, in fact, had those
21 A. Tdonot. 21 conversations. 5o you either have to amend your
22 Q. And as far as the company known as CALM Golf, 22 guestion, or I have to make the objection on a
23 C-A-L-M, did you review any proposals submitted 23 guestion-by-question basis.
24 by CALM Golf in 20087 24 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Well, I don't quite
DEPQSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD
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1 A. 1do notrecall. 1 know how to do that. I'm trying to establish
2 Q. oOther than the recommendation of the committee, | 2 his basis, and if his basis was the advice of
3 are you aware of any other reason why the bids 3 counsel and it was intended to be communicated
4 were rejected in October and December of 20087 4 to third partfes, then the privilege wouldn't
5 MR. TROY: Well, no. Once again, does 5 apply.
6 this exclude -- 6 But I don't want to get into any issue of
7 I think the question has to be very 7 privilege, and I'm not asking him questions
8 clear. I actually think that you have to have a 8 about his consultation with counsel. Maybe I
9 foundation. You have not put on the record 9 can phrase it a different way.
10 prior to asking these questions whether or not 10 MR. TROY: Thank you.
1 he has had conversations with counsel relating 11 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE} Sir, you've ldentlfled as
12 to the matter which are obviously exempt from 12 your reason for rejecting the bids that you had
13 discovery. 13 a recommendation from the committee, correct?
14 But if you're not going to do that, then 14 A. I believe, I said I assumed that.
15 I think you have to say that, other than 15 @ And other than the recommendation from the
16 communications with counsel. 16 committee, did you have any other information
17 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I've prefaced all of my 17 from any source that caused you to make a
18 questions that way. Bob, I understand that. 18 . determination to reject all bids?
19 MR. TROY: ButI don't think the record 19 A. I do not recall.
20 is accurate when you make an oblique reference 20 MR. TROY: Other than conversations with
21 earlier in the record, I think, when you're 21 counsel.
22 asking a question. Otherwise, I'm going to 22 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I'm not asking for
23 have to object to each question that you ask. 23 conversations with counsel. I've already said I
24 It's up to you. We can do it either way. 24 don't want any conversations with counsel.
DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD DEPQSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD
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1 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I can preface every 1 MR. TROY: But the answer to the question
2 question by saying, any time I ask you about 2 is inaccurate unless the witness references, one
3 conversations with anybody, it excludes any 3 way or the other, that he's excluding
4 conversations with town counsel or private 4 conversations with counsel.
5 counsel. 5 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) Other than conversations
6 Q. (BY MR.FOLLANSBEE) Do you understand that? 6 with counsel?
7 A, Yes. 7 A. Notthat I recall.
8 Q. So when I talk about recommendations from the 8 Q. Did you, personally, review any of the proposals
9 committee, I'm specifically excluding anything 9 that had been provided to the Town of Duxbury in
10 that Attorney Troy or any other attorney told 10 the fall of 20087
11 you who was representing you. I'm strictly 11 A. Idon'trecall.
12 speaking about what was communicated to you 12 Q. Once you made the determination that the RFP
13 from the committee members that you've 13 process would be rebid in December of 2008, did
14 identified. 14 you participate in drafting a new RFP document
15 Do you understand that, sir? 15 to be made available to all of the prospective
16 A, Fine. 16 biddars?
17 Q. Okay. 17 A. Not that I recall.
18 Now, your decision to reject all of the 18 Q. I'm going to show you what's been marked as
19 proposals in December of 2008, was that 19 Exhibit No. 6. And this is the RFP, And just
20 predicated on anything other than the 20 for clarity, I'll get you the date on it. This
21 recommendation that you had received from the 21 is the RFP that was due back to the town on
22 committee? 22 January 9th of 2009.
23 A. Ido notremember. 23 Have you had a chance to review Exhibit
24 MR. TROY: And so then the rest of that 24 No. 6, sir?
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1 A, Yes. 1 of CALM Golf?

2 Q. Anddo you recognize that as the RFP that was 2 A. Idon'trecall.

3 issued for the North Hill Country Club with bids 3 Q. Had you read the proposal of Johnson Golf

4 due in January of 20097 4 Management? .

5 A. That's what it states. Do I specifically recall 5 A. Ido notrecall

6 that particular document? No. 6 Q. Had you reviewed the evaluatlons that were

7 Q. And did you have any role in drafting that 7 prepared by Mr. Madden and Mr. Britten?

8 particular document? 8 A. Idon'trecall.

9 A. NotthatI recall. 8 Q. Having reviewed the exhibit, am I correct that
10 Q. And do you recall, as the chief procurement 10 the third evaluator was not Mr. Cushing but was
11 officer, that you appointed three different 11 Mr. Studley?

12 evaluators to evaluate the proposals in 20097? 12 A, Correct.
13 A. Idoremember that. 13 Q. And could you tell us who Mr. Studley is?
14 Q. Do you know who they were? 14 A. He is the assistant recreation director for the
15 A. I believe it was Mr. Cushing, Mr. Madden and 15 Town of Duxbury.
16 Mr. Britten, B-R-I-T-T-E-N, I believe. 16 Q. And who is Mr. Madden?
17 Q. Now, did you discuss with those three gentlemen 17 A, He is the finance director for the Town of
18 _____the RFP process and how they were going to___ _ [ 18_ __ _ Duxbury. [ o
19 review the proposals from the various 19 Q. And who Is Mr. Britten?
20 entities? 20 A. A citizen.
21 A. Idon't recall the conversation. 21 Q. And prior to issuing your award letter, had you
22 Q. Did you participate in any Instruction to those 22 reviewed the evaluations of the three gentlemen,
23 individuals on how they were going to go about 23 Mr. Madden, Mr. Britten and Mr. Studley?
24 the evaluation of the proposals? 24 A. Idon'trecall

DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD
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1 A. Idon'trecall. 1 @. In your letter, you purport to base your

2 Q. Did you review their evaluations yourse!f? 2 decision on the fact that those gentlemen made

3 A. Idon'trecall. 3 certain findings, is that correct?

4 Q. Did you uitimately make a determination on 4 MR. TROY: Well, what is the letter?

5 awarding a contract for the North Hill Goif 5 What do you mean by the letter?

6 Course contract to an entity called CALM Golf? 6 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Exhibit No. 10. I think

7 A. Ido. 7 it's called an award letter.

8 Q. AndI'm going to show you what's been marked as 8 MR. TROY: Exhibit 10, all right.

9 Exhibit 10. 8 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) In Exhibit 10, you
10 A. Okay. 10 indicate that, with regard to Mr. Gunnerson --
11 Q. And sir, do you recognize Exhibit 10 as your 11 and this is on page 3 of Exhibit 10 -- that
12 award letter dated January 15, 20097 12 evaluator Madden found that -- sorry, evaluator
13 A. Specifically, no. 13 Studley noted that Gunnerson was not currently
14 Q. You don't recognize that? 14 managing a golf course.

15 A. No. 15 Did you rely on that information?

16 Q. Do you have any memory that you issued an award | 16 MR. TROY: Objection.

17 letter in January of 2009 to CALM Golf? 17 I think that the document speaks for

18 - A. Iam aware that I awarded to CALM Golf. 18 itself. It's an award letter. And to

19 Specifically, the process, I do not recall. 19 characterize different portions of it and to

20 Q. Do you recall why you chose CALM Golf out of the 20 question as to whether he relied on different

21 various proposals? 21 portions, the document speaks for itself.

22 MR. TROY: Objection. 22 That's the award letter. He's acknowledged

23 A. Idonot. 23 that, .

24 Q. rd ask for you to take a look at Exhibit No. 24 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I understand that
DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD DEPOSITION OF RICHARD R. MacDONALD
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1 10. I have a few questions about that. 1 that's the award letter. I'm asking for his

2 MR. TROY: Well, he's going to have to 2 state of mind, what he believed, what he didn't

3 read it. 3 belleve when he issued that.

4 MR. FOLLANSBEE: He can read it. 4 MR. TROY: Well, then the objection is,

5 Do you want to take two minutes and take 5 there is no foundation. Because you haven't

6 a break? 6 established or put on the record that he has

7 MR. TROY: Sure. 7 any current state of mind about what he was

8 MR. FOLLANSBEE: We'll go off the 8 thinking about in 2009, in January of 2009.

9 record. 9 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) With regard to CALM Golf,
10 MR. TROY: He's going to have to read 10 in January of 2009, did you believe that CALM
1" it. 11 Golf was managing the Rockland Golf Course?
12 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Why don't we go off the 12 MR. TROY: Objection.

13 record so that the witness can read the 13 Q. You can answer. :

14 exhibit. 14 MR. TROY: No, no. I object to the form
15 (Recess taken.) 15 of that question. Did he believe? I think that
16 Q. (BY MR, FOLLANSBEE) You've had a chance to 16 the form of that is flawed.

17 review the exhibit, sir? 17 I guess, you can ask whether or not he
18 A. Yes. 18 has any memory as to, you know, any of the facts
19 Q. Having reviewed that, does that refresh your 19 that are in the document. And then after some
20 memory as o your reasons why you awarded the 20 type of foundation about that, go on, if he

21 contract to CALM Golf? 21 does. I don't know that he has any current

22 A, I've read the statements in the letter. 22 memory, He barely recognized the document,
23 Q. And with regard to that, had you also, prior to 23 MR. FOLLANSBEE: It's his document.

24 issuing your decision, had you read the proposal 24 MR. TROY: Right, And it's on the
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1 record. But he's also the town manager of the 1 Is that what the question is? I'm confused
2 municipality, and this document is dated a year 2 about the tense of these questions.
3 ago. 3 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Well, he wrote it on
4 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) Sir, at the time that you 4 January 15th of 2009.
5 wrote this letter on January 15,2009, did you 5 MR, TROY: Correct. The docurnent speaks
6 believe that CALM Golf was currently managing 6 for itself,
7 the Rockland Golf Course? ‘ 7 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I understand that the
8 MR. TROY: Objection. 8 document speaks for itself. I want the witness
g You can answer only if you have any 9 to tell me what his belief was.
10 memory of what you remember about any of the 10 MR. TROY: If he remembers a year
11 people who submitted proposals, at that time. 11 later.
12 A. Ido not recall. 12 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) Sir, just so we're clear on
13 Q. You don't remember anything about it? 13 anything, I don't want you testifying if you
14 A. About what? 14 have no memory of anything.
15 Q. About whether or not you believed CALM Golf was |15 A. And that's what I'm trying to tell you, which
16 operating a golf course. 16 I've repeated now, I believe, three times to
17 MR. TROY Ob]ectlon 17 the same question you've asked in different
18 nnr- 3
19— foundation—He hasto be" asked ‘whether ornot - 19 Q. ~And T'd like 0 find out What you d6 recall, =™
20 he has any memory as to the circumstances. 20 sir. That's all,
21 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Go ahead. 21 With regard to CALM Golf's proposal, is
22 MR. TROY: Well, he's just not going to 22 it your testimony that you never read it?
23 speculate about memories that you want him to 23 A. Idon't recall.
24 have that he may not have. 24 Q. Well, you made a determination that CALM Golf
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1 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I'm not asking him to 1 had sufficient financial information -- this is
2 create a memory. I'm asking if he has one. 2 at the bottom of page 3 -- you state that, "CALM
3 MR. TROY: Ask him if he has a memory, 3 Golf had sufficient financial information to be
4 that's different, You didn't ask him that. 4 considered the most advantageous proposer for
5 Q. {BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) As you sit here today, do 5 the town."
6 you believe that CALM Golf was managing the 6 What financial information were you
7 Rockland Golf Course? 7 considering when you made that statement?
8 MR. TROY: Objection. 8 A. Idon't remember any specific financial
9 Q. You can answer the guestion. 9 information.
10 MR. TROY: If you remember. 10 Q. Waell, if you look at the bottom of page 3, sir,
11 A, Idon'tremember. 11 beginning with the word "examination."
12 Q. I'm asking you right now, today, do you believe 12 A. Yes.
13 that CALM Golf ever managed the Rockland Golf 13 Q. If you could read that paragraph to yourself,
14 Course? 14 and then I'll ask you a few questions about
15 MR. TROY: He's already answered. He 15 that.
186 said he doesn't remember, 16 A. Okay.
17 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I'm not asking if he 17 Q. Did you examine the proposal of CALM Golf
18 remembers, F'm just asking him, does he have a 18 before you wrote the letter, which is Exhibit
19 memory, Right now, does he think they ever 19 No. 10?
20 managed it? He either thinks they did or he 20 A. Ido notremember.
21 thinks they didn't. 21 Q. Did you review any financial information of
22 MR. TROY: Objection, 22 CALM Goif before you wrote the letter, which is
23 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) Do you think they did? Do |23 Exhibit No. 107
24 you think CALM Golf managed the Rockland Golf 24 A. Ido notremember.
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1 Course? 1 Q. Is there anything that you could review to
2 A. Idon'trecall. 2 assist you in remembering whether or not you
3 Q. well, when you say that, in your award, you say 3 examined that proposal?
4 that CALM Golf and Johnson Golf are the only 4 A, Repeat that guestion, please.
5 entities that are currently operating golf 5 Q. Arethere any documents that you could review
6 courses, 6 that would assist you in remembering whether or
7 MR. TROY: What page are you referring 7 not you looked at the CALM Golf proposal?
8 to? . 8 A. Idonetknow.
9 MR. FOLLANSBEE: This is the last page, 9 Q. Having loocked at this document, your recitation
10 page 4. 10 that CALM Golf has sufficlent financial
11 MR. TROY: Do you want the witness to 11 information, does that refresh your memory that
12 look at the document? 12 you looked at some financial information of CALM
13 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Yes, please. 13 Golf?
14 MR, TROY: 1Is there a question? 14 A. No.
15 MR, FOLLANSBEE: Yes. 15 Q. Did you maintain any other records concerning
16 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) What golf course did you 16 the RFP process for the North Hill Country
17 think CALM Golf was operating? 17 Club?
18 MR. TROY: Objection. 18 A. Specifically, me?
19 Q. You can answer. 19 Q. Yes.
20 A. I don'trecall 20 A. Idon't know.
29 Q. Butyou believed they were operating some golf 21 Q. Do you maintain files on each one of your public
22 course? 22 procurements?
23 MR. TROY: Objection. 23 A. I'm sure there are files in town hall.
24 Is the question, does he believe now? 24 Q. And are those maintained in your office?
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(BY MR, FOLLANSBEE) Well, sir,-I'm going to

41

1 A. They would be maintained in the town manager's/ 1 Q.
2 board of selectmen's office. _ 2 show you some questions regarding the prebid
3 And as the chief procurement officer, it's your 3 conference of October 2nd of 2008..
4 ultimate responsibility to maintain those files, 4 Could you just take a lock at’ those,
5 Is that correct? 5 please?
6 A. Yes, yes. 6 MR. TROY: Objection as to relevance,
7 Q. 1InJanuary of 2009, had you recewed information 7 too. This has to do with the first bid,
8 from any source that the principals of CALM Golf 8 correct?
9 were in bankruptcy? 9 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Yes.
10 A. Not thatI recall. 10 MR. TROY: So this document here --
11 Q. Before you issued your award letter, had you 11 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Jlust for clarity.
12 personally reviewed the RFP as to the criteria 12 MR. TROY: -- it's an unsigned document.
13 for evaluating the various proposals? 13 Can you identify it beyond that, or do you just
14 A. 1Iread many RFPs. I don't recall any specifics 14 want him to look and see whether he has seen
15 to this one. 15 that?
16 Sir, I'm going to show you the Criteria 16 Is that the question?
17 Evaluation Standards, and this Is pages 6, 7 and 17 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I'll formulate a
% 8 R A8 _questlonforhim. ___ __ T
19 MR. TROY: From what document? 19 MR. TROY: Okay.
20 MR, FOLLANSBEE: For the RFP, which is -- 20 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) Do you have any memaory of
21 They are pages 6, 7 and 8 out of Exhibit 21 ever seeing those written questions?
22 No. 6. ) 22 A. Neo.
23 MR. TROY: Well, we don't want to get 23 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I'd ask that that be
24 confused here. Which one? 24 marked as the next exhibit.
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1 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Well, this is the second 1 {Exhibit No. 16, For Identification,
2 RFP. 2 marked.)
3 MR. TROY: The second RFP? 3 Q. (BYMR. FOLLANSBEE) And just for completeness,
4 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Yes. 4 not remembering whether there were any
5 MR. TROY: Okay. 5 guestions, you don't remember answering any
6 Q. (BYMR, FOLLANSBEE) Sir, directing your 6 questions, is that correct?
7 attention to the three pages, had you reviewed 7 A. Correct.
8 those prior to issuing your award letter, which 8 Q. Wwith regard to the RFP document itself, Exhibit
9 is Exhibit No. 107 9 No. & -- and this Is the RFP for January of 2009
10 A. Are you referring to attachment 32 10 for the North Hill Country Club -- do you know
11 Q. Yes. 11 who drafted this document?
12 A. I don't recall. 12 A. No, Ido not.
13 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I'd ask that that be 13 Q. Your memory Is that you did not draft it, is
14 marked as the next exhibit. 14 that correct?
15 {Exhibit No. 15, For Identification, 15 A. Idon'trecall drafting it.
16 marked.) 16 Q. Wwith regard to the procedures in the Town of
17 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) Do you remember -- 17 Duxbury for an RFP such as the one that's been
18 - Well, I suppose [ ought t¢ ask you, do 18 marked as Exhibit No. 6, is there a policy of
19 you remember after the prebid conference in 19 checking the references that are provided by the
20 October of 2008 that the various bidders 20 various vendors?
21 submitted written questions to the town? 21 MR. TROY: Objection.
22 A. Na. 22 Q. You can answer that.
23 Q. Were you the person -- assuming that said 23 MR. TROY: If you understand it.
24 questions were submitted -- are you the person 24 A. Repeat the question.
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1 that would answer those questions? 1 Q. Yes,
2 MR. TROY: Well, he doesn't remember the 2 Does the Town of Duxbury have a policy to
3 guestions, so how would he remember? 3 check the references that are provided by
4 MR, FOLLANSBEE: I'm saying, if questions 4 varlous proposers In their written
5 were submitted, is he the person who would have 5 submissions?
6 answered? 6 MR. TROY: Objection.
7 MR. TROY: What does that mean, if 7 Q. Youcan answer it.
a questions were submitted? 8 MR. TROY: Are you talking about in
9 MR, FOLLANSBEE; Well, written 9 general or about RFPs? Is that what the
10 questions, if they're submitted at a prebid 10 question is?
1 conference, somebody answered them on behalf of 11 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Yes, in general, about
12 the town. I'm just trying to find out who 12 RFPs, He is the chief procurement offlcer. [
13 answered them, if it was this gentleman or 13 want to know, do they have a policy for checking
14 somebody else. 14 the references.
15 MR. TROY: Wwell, he doesn't remember. He 15  A. My assumption Is, yes.
16 doesn’t remember the questions, How would he 16 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) Is that something that you
17 remember who answered them? 17 do, perseonally, or does somebody else do it?
18 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Well, he hasn't said 18 A. Typically, not me.
19 that yet. 19 Q. Typically, who would check the references?
20 MR. TROY: He did. He just said that he 20 A. Itdepends on the RFP.
21 didn't remember the question, that questions 21 Q. Well, with regard to the RFP for the golf
22 were submitted. If he doesn't remember if 22 course, which is Exhibit No. 6, the RFP asked
23 questions were submitted, then he doesn't 23 for references --
24 remember what the questions were, 24 (Cell phone ringing.}
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1 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Do you need to get 1 - answer. ]
2 that? 2 Q. well, it's more than a hypothetical, because
3 MR. TROY: Excuse me, just for a second, 3 that's exactly what CALM Golf gave you.
4 (Discussion off the record.) 4 So what I'm asking you, sir, is If you
5 MR. TROY: I apologize. 0 5 knew at the time that CALM Golf had total assets
6 MR. FOLLANSBEE: No problem. 6 of $169 and that was the total amount of
7 What was the last question, please? 7 financial information that you had for CALM
8 (Question read.) 8 Golf, would you have made the award to CALM
9 Q. (BYMR. FOLLANSBEE) And who would have been 9 Golf?
10 designated to check those references? 10 MR, TROY: Objection,
11 A. Idon'trecall 11 That assumes -- it's a hypothetical
12 Q. Directing your attention to your award which is 12 which the witness has correctly said -- and it
13 Exhibit No. 10 -- and I may have asked you this 13 assumes that some analysis that you've given is
14 before, but if I did, I apologize -~ was there 14 a fact, which of course Is not supported.
16 anything that you reviewed prior to issuing this 15 Do you have a document that you want to
16 letter that gave you information about the 16 show the witness?
17 financial condition of CALM Golf? 17 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Sure.
* n't recall—— 1H—Q—BY-MR: FOHANSBEEPoyou have difficulty
119 Q. ~After issuing your award on January 15,2009, © 19 777" ‘aAswering that question, §ir? T
20 did you receive any additional information 20 A. Idon't understand your question.
21 subsequent to that with regard to the financial 21 Q. Okay. .
22 condition of CALM Golf? 22 Let's assume that CALM Golf only had
23 A. NotthatIremember. 23 total assets of $169 as of January 9, 2009.
24 Q. 1In your decision, you Indicate that, "The 24 A. 1don't recall the assets of CALM Golf.
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1 financial data from the propeser must give the 1 Q. Iunderstand that.
2 town the confidence that the proposer could 2 A. Soyou're asking me a hypothetical question.
3 administer a significant business such as North 3 Q. A hypothetical, assuming that they had $169 in
4 Hill." . 4 total assets, would you have awarded a contract
5 MR. TROY: What page is that on? 5 te such a company to run North Hill for a
6 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Let me dlig that out for 6 five-year period?
7 you. It's on page 3. I've got a highlighted 7 MR. TROY: Objection.
8 section of it that might make it easier for 8 A. Ican'tanswer that.
9 you, 9 Q. Why can't you answer that, sir?
10 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) If you would look at page 3 10 A. Because you're asking me something not based on
11 of your award, the highlighted section. 11 fact. T have no idea where you're going with
12 A, Okay. 12 that and what the question, specifically, is.
13 Q. Inthe highlighted section, you state, "I 13 I don’t recall the assets of CALM Golf or any
14 conclude that, while Gunnerson has past 14 other one who applied for this position,
15 experlence, his proposal lacks specificity to 15 Q. Sir, I'll show you the nonprice proposal of
16 conclude that he Is capable of running North 16 CALM Golf, which Mr, Lanzetta identified at his
17 Hill as soon as the award Is made. 17 deposition and has been marked as Exhibit No.
18 "Moreover, the financlal data submitted 18 6.
19 by Gunnerson Is limited te his personal returns 19 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I'll show it to
20 and does not provide the information a business 20 Attorney Troy. If you want to take a five
21 return would that Is needed to give the town the 21 minute break to take a look at that, I will be
22 confidence that he could administer a 22 happy to afford you that time.
23 significant business such as North Hill." 23 MR. TROY; Well, what do you want him to
24 Now, with regard to the financial 24 do, read it?
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1 information, what financial information were you 1 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I don't want him to read
2 looking for, at that time? 2 the whole proposal. I'm going to highlight a
3 MR. TROY: Objection. What Is the 3 specific portion of it,
4 guestion? Does it relate to what you've just 4 MR. TROY: I think that you've already
5 read? 5 asked a question as to whether or not he
6. MR, FOLLANSBEE; Yes, it does, <] reviewed these proposals,
7 MR. TROY: So your question is about 7 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I did.
8 Gunnerson? - 8 MR. TROY: And I think that the answer
9 MR." FOLLANSBEE: No. 9 was that he did not.
10 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) My question Is, the town 10 MR. FOLLANSBEE: That's correct,
11 needed certaln financial information to give 11 MR. TROY: So then what is the point of
12 the town confidence that somecne could 12 his reviewlng them now if he didn't review them
13 administer a significant business such as North 13 then?
14 Hill, 14 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Well, so I can get an
15 What financial data were you looking for 15 answer to the question.
16 in that regard? 16 MR. TROY: To the hypothetical.
17 A. Idon't recall. 17 MR. FOLLANSBEE: No. It's more than a
18 Q. Ifa proposer had total assets of $169 in their 18 hypothetical, An answer to the question based
19 company, would that have glven you the 19 on what CALM Golf actually provided to the
20 confidence that that proposer could administer a 20 town.
21 significant business such as North Hill? 21 MR. TROY: Well, I think if you are
22 MR. TROY: Objection. 22 asking him te review that document, which I
23 You can answer, if you can. . 23 object to, but he's going to have to have time
24 A. That's a hypothetical question. I can't 24 to review It. He's going to have to read it.
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1 You'li have to suspend the deposition, and then 1 hypothetical. :
2 we'll have to see where it goes from there. 2 MR. FOLLANSBEE: I understand it's a
3 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Well, before we suspend 3 hypothetical. I'm entitled to the answer.
4 the deposition -- 4 A. Ican't answer that. :
5 MR. TROY: It's a 30 page document. 5 Q. Why can't you answer it? :
6 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Before we suspend the 6 A. Because it's a hypothetical question
7 deposition, I'!l take a five minute break, and 7 Q. Andwhy can't you answer a hypothetical
8 I'll give the witness pages 91 through 106 to 8 question?
9 take a look at. 8 A. Because I'm not aware of this situation, I
10 MR. TROY: But I'm going to object if 10 can't recall that situation.
11 you're giving him part of the document. He 11 Q. Well, I'm not asking you whether you can recall
12 needs to review the whole proposal. 12 it.
13 MR. FOLLANSBEE: He can look at the 13 This is their bid. It's been identified
14 whole proposal. 14 by Mr. Lanzetta as being their bid. And these
15 Q. (BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) If you want to take the 15 are the only financial documents that CALM Golf
16 time to look at the whole proposal, I will 16 provided. Mr. Lanzetta has so testified and
17 suggest to you that the financial data from 17 authenticated the document.
18 . CALM Golf is found on pages 91 to 106. And I'd 18 . ._Given that this is.the only information _
19 ask you to take a look at that portion of it, 19 provided to the Town of Duxbury, is it your
20 and then I have a couple of questions. 20 testimony that, if you were aware of this when
21 MR. FOLLANSBEE: And we can take a five 21 you made your award in January af 2009, you
22 minute break while you do that, and I'll use the 22 would not have awarded them a contract?
23 men's room, 23 MR. TROY: Okay, objection. And the
24 (Recess taken.) 24 objection Is, the witness has said that he did
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1 Q. (BYMR. FOLLANSBEE) Mr. MacDonald, you now 1 not see the document contemporaneous or prior to
2 have in front of you a portion of Exhibit No. 7 2 making the award.
3 which is the financial data that was provided 3 And so therefore, since the award is
4 by CALM Golf in January of '09. 4 predicated on a document that he didn't see, my
5 Have you had a chance to look at that 5 objection is that he cannot now, a year later,
6 while we took a hreak? 6 having briefly looked at a document in any way
7 A. Yes. 7 cure the fact that he has testified that he
& Q. And based upon the fact that the most recent 8 never saw the document,
9 financial statement of CALM Golf, which is in 9 So it's beyond a hypothetical. It's a
10 front of you, demonstrated that, at the end of 10 document that does not relate to any evidence
11 2007, they had total assets of $169, were you 11 that the witness has said that he examined, and
12 aware of that at the time that you made your 12 therefore, he can't answer questions about a
13 award? 13 document that he didn't see.
14 A. Idon'trecall. 14 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Just for purposes of
15 . Now being aware of it, or given that the 15 clarity, the document in question is the
16 information they provided to the Town of 16 nonprice proposal submitted by CALM Golf, Inc.
17 Duxbury was that they had total assets of $169, 17 to the Town of Duxbury, It was obtained from
18 had you known that that was their financial 18 the office of the town manager in the Town of
19 condition, would you have awarded a contract to 19 Duxbury,
20 them? 20 It was provided pursuant to a FOIA
21 A. Had I known? 21 requeast and/or a request for production of
22 Q. Yes, 22 documents in this litigation. And it has been
23 A. No, I don't recall seeing that document. That's |23 authenticated by Mr. Charles Lanzetta at his
24 a CPA -- 24 deposition on November 4th of 2008,
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1 Is that audited? 1 Q. (BYMR. FOLLANSBEE) Is there any doubt in your
2 Q. 1It's unaudited. 2 mind, sir, that the document, Exhibit 7, is the
3 A. Idon't--I neversaw it, and I don't recall 3 nonprice proposal of CALM Golf that was
4 seeing it, and I don't recall discussing it. 4 submitted to the Town of Duxbury?
5 Q. And you never considered that as part of your 5 A. Idon'trecall seeing the document,
6 award, correct? 6 Q. Wwel, whether you saw it or not, do you have
7 A. Not that I recall. 7 any reascn to believe that this is anything
8 Q. Andif you did have this information, that if 8 other than the nonprice proposal submitted by
9 this information was available to you when you 9 CALM Golf?
10 were making your decision to award a contract 10 A. Whether I saw it or not, I don't recall seeing
11 for the North Hill Country Club, had you known 11 it. The question is whether I recall seeing it
12 that CALM Gaolf's total assets were $169, is it 12 or not? Is that your guestion?
13 fair to say you would not have awarded them a 13 Q. No.
14 contract? 14 My gquestion is, do you have any
15 MR. TROY: Objection. 15 information that this is anything other than the
16  A. Idid not know the assets of CALM Golf. 16 nonprice proposal submitted by CALM Golf to the
17 Q. Iknow that you didn't know it, and I understand 17 Town of Duxbury?
18 that to be your testimony, sir. 18 A. My answer to that question is no.
18 But what I'm asking you is, if you did 19 (Discussion off the record.)
20 know that, if you were aware that they only had 20 Q. {(BY MR. FOLLANSBEE) Do you have Exhibit 10 in
21 $169 in the bank and that was their total 21 front of you?
22 assets, would you have awarded a contract to 22 A. No.
23 them? 23 Q. You don't have Fxhibit 107?
24 MR. TROY: Objection. Thats a 24 A. No.
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1 Q. " Sir, I'li give you Exhibit 10 agaln and if you 1 ‘ultimately follows the statute to answer
2 would look at the bottom of page 3. 2 questions that imply some omission, whereas the
3 A. Okay. 3 statute Is very clear that the evaluators have
4 Q. You state, at the last sentence on the page, 4 specific responsibilities. It's all set forth
5 you state that, "CALM Golf has the experience, 5 in the statute.
6 the organizatiénal capability, the maintenance 6 This whole deposition is nothmg other
7 equipment and the staff and sufficient financial 7 than an inquiry that presupposes that the person
8 information to be considered the most 8 asking the questions doesn't understand anything
2] advantageous proposal for the town." 9 about the 30B process.
10 What financial information were you 10 MR, FOLLANSBEE: I would be happy to have
11 relying upon in writing that paragraph? 11 you instruct me on the 30B process any time,
12 A, Idon'trecall, 12 Bob,
13 Q. Is there anything that could refresh your memory 13 MR. TROY: So I think that, you know,
14 on that? 14 with the respect that is owed to the town
15 A. No, I don't believe I've seen any. I assume 15 manager of the Town of Duxbury, the questions
16 that this was vetted out by the committee. 16 should be limlted to his furtherance of the
Q. When you say it was "vetted out by the 17 statute's process obligations, which include :
—fJS—eommtteeLeeuid—yewteﬂﬂwwha%vewmeaﬁby—% Hrvt owingtheprocess——-
: “"the committee"? T 19 TWith respect to the nénprice’and the price
20 A. 1Isaid I assumed it was vetted out by the 20 process that's in the statute.
21 commiittee. 21 That's all that your procurement officer
22 Q. Tlunderstand that. And [ want to know what you 22 does, He doesn't read any of the financial
23 mean by the word "committee." 23 documents. He doesn't study financial
24 A. The review process. 24 statements. That's alf in the statute. And I
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t Q. Sothe committee would be -- 1 object to furthering that, because I frankly
2 A. The evaluators. 2 think that the deposition is now bordering on
3 Q. Sothe committee would be the three evaluators 3 harassment, _
4 that you appointed? 4 MR. JOHNSON: Yeah, by you. You're
5 A. Correct. 5 unbelievable, man. This guy is something.
& Q. And you read their evaluations? 6 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Jjust stop.
7 A. Idon'trecall. I've said that before. 7 There is no harassment going on
B Q. You don't know if you read their evaluations? 8 whatsoever. This is the gentleman who issued
9 A. Ido notrecall 9 the award of the contract described in Exhibit
10 Q. And you didn't read the proposal of CALM Golf? 10 No. 10. I'd say 90 percent of my questions have
11 A. I don'trecall reading their proposal. 1 had to do with Mr. MacDonald's decision to issue
12 Q. And you didn't get any other financial 12 that award and the basis that he put in his
13 information about CALM Golf, other than what 13 award letter, which now he either doesn't recall
14 somebody else told you, is that correct? 14 or can't explain or doesn't know where he got
15 A. Idon'trecall 15 the information from.
16 Q. Why did you believe, in January of '09, that 16 And with regard to his role as the chief
17 CALM Golf had sufficient financial information? 17 procurement officer, it's his obligation both
18 MR. TROY: Objection. 18 statutorily and as the town administrator to
19 A. Why did I believe? 19 maintain the files.
20 Q. Yes. 20 MR. TROY: But there is no question, the
21 A. Well, Idon't recall. I assume that the 21 files have been maintained. Mo one is saying
22 evaluators looked at this information. 22 that the files have not been maintained.
23 Q. And as far as CALM owning the maintenance 23 50 you know, I'd request that you strike
24 equipment, you didn't make any determination 24 that response because no one has suggested that
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1 that they owned any maintenance equipment other 1 there is anything improper with respect to the
2 than what evaluators may have told you, 2 maintenance of files. You have all of the
3 correct? 3 information that the town has, It's an open
4 A. No, I did not. 4 book. You have it right in front of you,
5 Q. Do you recall the evaluators having any 5 MR. FOLLANSBEE: And I would simply
6 conversation with you about the CALM Golf 6 suggest that for the witness knowing of the
7 proposal? 7 deposition, knowing that he was coming here
8 A. No. 8 today, decides that he doesn't review anything
9 Q. Isityour belief that there just was no 9 in anticipation of the testimony, it does waste
10 conversation? You simply reviewed their 10 time, there is no question about it.
11 evaluations? 11 And your suggestion that he review this
12 A. Idon'trecall. 12 material and we suspend and reconvene at a date
13 Q. Now, with respect to the fact that much of the 13 when he is familiar with the documents, I'll be
14 testimony you've given today is that you don't 14 happy to do that,
15 recall the information surrounding this bid 15 MR. TROY: Well, the witness isn't
16 process, are there records available to you in 16 required, under the rules, to review any
17 your office at town hall that would refresh your 17 documents.
18 memory on those topics? 18 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Well, then perhaps what
19 MR. TROY: Objection. 19 we need to do is take a different deposition of
20 You know, for the record, the entire 20 the keeper of the records of the town. But
21 deposition has been taken in the vacuum of any 21 was taking the depaosition of the individual who
22 kind of knowledge of the statute. It's apparent 22 made this decision and trying to find the basis
23 to me that there is no understanding of the 30B 23 of his decision.
24 precess, and that you are asking the person who 24 The witness is refusing to answer
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1 questions about hypotheticals. I.know of no 1 CERTIFICATE
2 basis in order to instruct the witness not to 2 ;
3 answer those questions, but that's your 3 _ L, RICHARD R. MacDONALD', do hereby
4 prerogative. ; g Efar;g:r'i:;ta:)fl nza:rv:e;:i?ndotnhye feaor:gglerr::ger certify
g re-noti\:eh::ul:ln:egsénsi ;c:):uomlse:::fvei:hd;hi“ 6 that said tra.nscript is a true and acc(u-'éte
7 i . h L | 7 record of said testimony.
re-notice of the deposition so that the withess g Dated at .
8 isnotatany disadvantage as far as his 9 this day of ,
9 recollection is concerned. 10 20009,
10 MR. TROY: Well, what documents don't you | 119
11 have? 12
12 MR, FOLLANSBEE: Well, I thought that I 13
13 had all of the documents. But this man is 14
14 evidently not familiar with them. RICHARD R. MacDONALD
15 MR. TROY: Well, there is no reguirement 15 SIGNED UNDER THE PENALTIES
16 that the witness be familiar with documents GF PERIURY
17 that he has no responsibility to review. ]_6,
18 That's the prablem. _You're asking the wrong 1'3 _ - _
19 witness. 19
20 MR. JOHNSON: He's not familiar with his 20
21 own letter. This is a joke. You ought to be 21
22 embarrassed. You call yourself a lawyer? Give 22
23 me a break. 23
24 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Just stop. 24
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1 MR. JOHNSON: Give me a break. You guys 1 CERTIFICATE
2 are something, ['ll tell you. 2 ﬁ?é?:l;gg::esaslth of Massachusetts
3 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Let's just go off the 3 1, JAMES A, LYONS, Certified Shorthand
4 record. 4 Reporter, Registered Diplomate Reporter,
5 (Discussion off the record.) 5 Certified Realtime Reporter and Notary Public in
6 MR. TROY: Back on the record, and I'm 6 and forthe Commonwealth of Massachusetts, do
7 wyoing to object to the deposition being 7 hereby certify: that RICHARD R. MacDONALD, the
8 suspended, and we'll see from there. You've 8 witness whosg deposi_tmn is h'elrembefore set
9 "asked the witness twe hours of questions. He's 2 forth, was satisfactorily identified, .tr?en .duly
- 10 sworn by me, and that such deposition is a true
10 testified truthfully and under oath. 11 record of the testimony given by the said
11 MR, FOLLANSBEE: Bob, that's preposterous |12 witness.
12 to say two hours. 13 I further certify that I am not a
13 MR. TROY: well, an hour and a half of 14 relative or employee or counsel or attorney for
14 questions. 16 suin aunsar ot atearmeySiative oremploy e of
suc rney, nor
15 . MR- FOLLANSBEE: I mean, yo':' were 45 17 or otherwise interestedﬂi'n the outcome of th:
16 minutes late getting here, so we didn't start on 18 action.
17 time. And 1 can go back and look at the record 19 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set
18 or not. 20 my hand and notarial seal this 30th day of
19 MR. TROY: Well, what time did the 21 December, 2009.
20 deposition begin? 22
21 THE COURT REPORTER: 10:30.
22 MR. TROY: So it's 12:15. That's pretty 23 | é‘;’&Eﬁof'l'i‘;%gi RDR, CRR
23 close to two hours. 24 My commission expires
24 MR. FOLLANSBEE: No, itisn't. Well, we on April 29, 2016
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1 had a lot oftimes where we didn't ask any
2 questions,
3 Let's just go back on the record, and
4 I'll state that] am going to suspend the
5 deposition. My brother wants to put something
€ on the recerd indicating that he's objecting to
7 the suspension of the deposition.
8 MR. TROY: And I'm going to object based
9 on the fact that the witness has answered each
10 and every question that was posed to him
11 truthfully and to the best of his knowledge and
12 that, apparently, there is some concern that the
13 witness has not reviewed documents, which he is
14 notrequired to review.
15 I respectfully suggest that the questions
16 are being asked to the wrong witness and that
17 the whole deposition belies an unfamiliarity
18 with the 30B process. And I'm going to object
19 to reconvening ary deposition of this particular
20 witness.
21 MR. FOLLANSBEE: Thank you.
22 (Whereupon, the deposition was suspended
23 at12:15 p.m,) '
24
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